
Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

 
INYO COUNTY 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
P.O. DRAWER Q 

    INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                 PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  

                                 FAX:    (760) 878-2001  
Michael Errante, Executive Director    
 

AGENDA 
 

INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Bishop City Council Chambers 

301 W. Line St., Bishop, CA  93514 
8:00 a.m. 

 
Justine Kokx is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 

 
Topic: Inyo County Local Transportation Commission combined November/December meeting - 

December 4th, at 8:00 a.m. 
Time: Dec 4, 2024, 08:00 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84629349250?pwd=0bMLNVUb5x2ccOXK7b4FIBMwZyCRXO.1 
 

Meeting ID: 846 2934 9250 
Passcode: 182975 

 
• +1 669 444 9171 US 

 
All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Questions and 
comments will be accepted via e-mail to: jkokx@inyocounty.us.   Any member of the public may also make comments during 
the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission.  PUBLIC NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Transportation Commission Secretary at (760) 878-0201.  Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28CFR 35. 102-35. ADA Title II). 

   

December 4, 2024 

  8:00 a.m.  Open Meeting  

1. Roll Call 

2. Public Comment 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Consent Agenda 
a. Request approval of the minutes of the meeting of October 16, 2024 

 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84629349250?pwd=0bMLNVUb5x2ccOXK7b4FIBMwZyCRXO.1
mailto:jkokx@inyocounty.us


Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

2. Approve the Master Fund Agreement between Caltrans and the ICLTC via Resolution No. 2024-
08 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

3. LTC Funding Presentation – Justine Kokx 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

4. City of Bishop Report 

5. ESTA Executive Director’s Report  

6. Caltrans Report 

7. Tribal Report  

8.  DVNP Report 

9.  USFS Report 

10.  Executive Director’s Report  
 

11. Reports from all members of the Inyo County LTC 

      CORRESPONDENCE 

      ADJOURNMENT 

     Adjourned until 8:00 a.m. Wednesday January 15, 2024, Independence Board Chambers  

 
UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
SSTAC Unmet Transit Needs meetings 
FY24-25 Overall Work Program Amendment No. 1 
FY25-26 Overall Work Program Draft – due March 1st 



Action Item No. 1 
 
 
 

Consent Agenda  



Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

 
INYO COUNTY 

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
P.O. DRAWER Q 

    INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 
                                 PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  

                                 FAX:    (760) 878-2001  
Michael Errante, Executive Director    
 

MINUTES 
 

INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Inyo County Board Chambers, 224 N. Edwards St., Independence 

8:00 a.m. 
 

 
All members of the public are encouraged to participate in the discussion of any items on the Agenda. Questions and 
comments will be accepted via e-mail to: jkokx@inyocounty.us.   Any member of the public may also make comments during 
the scheduled “Public Comment” period on this agenda concerning any subject related to the Inyo County Local Transportation 
Commission.  PUBLIC NOTICE: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 
participate in this meeting, please contact the Transportation Commission Secretary at (760) 878-0201.  Notification 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Inyo County Local Transportation Commission to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 
accessibility to this meeting (28CFR 35. 102-35. ADA Title II). 

   

October 16, 2024 

  8:03 a.m.  Open Meeting  

1. Roll Call 

Commissioners Present  

Vice Chair: Jeffery Ray 
Commissioner: Jennifer Roeser 
Commissioner: Stephen Muchovej 
Commissioner: Scott Marcellin 
 
Others Present  

Justine Kokx: LTC Transportation Planner 
Tina Chinzi: LTC Secretary 
Catherine Carr: Caltrans 
Rick Franz: Caltrans 
Mark Heckman: Caltrans 
William Powell “Chip”: Caltrans 
Nora Gamino: City of Bishop 
Phil Moores: ESTA 
Elaine Kabala: ESCOG 
Trina Orrill: County of Inyo 
Tawni Thompson 
Aaron Schat 
Erick Schat 

 

mailto:jkokx@inyocounty.us


Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

Karen Kong: City of Bishop 
Marianne’s iPhone 
S160587 
Al Amiri 

 

2. Public Comment during the Truck Bypass discussion, Item No. 4 

Aaron Schat – Expressed concerns about a truck bypass potentially diverting traffic away 
from the commercial center of Bishop.  Believes that a bypass would fundamentally change 
Bishop. 
Erick Schat – Getting trucks off Main Street would be a good thing but would not support 
anything other than getting the trucks off, which could hurt Bishop. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Consent Agenda 
a. Request approval of the minutes of the meeting of August 21, 2024 

b. Ratify Letter of Support for Reconnecting Communities Federal Grant Program 

c. ESTA State of Good Repair 

*Motion made by Commissioner Roeser and seconded by Commissioner Muchovej; all in favor. 
 
 

2. Request Commission consider combining the November and December LTC meetings to 
November 20th; approve via minute order. 

*Motion made by Commissioner Muchovej to combine the November and December meetings 
to a date to be determined.  Seconded by Commissioner Roeser, all in favor.  Justine will poll the 
Commissioners for a preferred date. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

3. Elaine Kabala of ESCOG – Reconnecting Communities Grant Program 

Elaine Kabala, Executive Director of ESCOG, summarized the grant submission for the federal 
Reconnecting Communities Grant Program.  She described the current conditions along US 395 as 
having little visual cues for motorists as they enter communities at high speeds.  The goal of this grant 
would be to expand community engagement in developing a vision for the Eastern Sierra corridor to 
complement the funded PID beyond core Caltrans infrastructure improvements and get community 
plans shovel-ready for implementation.  There is a need for community vision plans in several 
communities, including Independence and Big Pine.  The project would also look at circulation in the 
Bishop area to look for solutions to the increase in truck traffic. 

4. Bishop Truck Bypass discussion (link to BAACS) 

https://www.inyocounty.us/sites/default/files/2022-12/07_1009_BAACS_final.pdf


Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

Commissioner Muchovej highlighted some of the traffic/circulation problems on Main Street in the 
city of Bishop; namely that there are on average 15000 cars each day, and an average of 1 big rig 
every minute. He provided an overview of the BAACS from 2007 and emphasized that public 
outreach for downtown plans results in feedback that walking on Main Street does not feel safe and 
that a main culprit of that was truck traffic.   Whenever the topic of circulation in the downtown 
corridor arises the topic of truck traffic and a bypass inevitably comes up.  The current truck traffic 
volume in downtown Bishop already exceeds the projected 2040 truck volume that was projected by 
a Caltrans traffic study completed 5 years ago.   He believes the project needs to be framed as a 
Highway 6 bypass since most of the truck traffic through Bishop is headed to Highway 6.  There is a 
process for achieving large projects, which takes time and long-term planning with robust community 
engagement.  He believes that the discussion needs to happen now and continue moving forward in a 
holistic manner.   

 
Commissioner Roeser prefers to spend LTC resources on priority projects identified in the Regional 
Transportation Plan. There are shovel ready projects countywide that could be addressed sooner, and 
that the focus should be on those projects now, and that using LTC resources on a bypass planning 
grant at this time would be putting the cart before the horse, given the potential for the ESCOG grant.   
She has concerns about the eastern alternatives identified in the BAACS and is not willing to lose an 
acre of agricultural land. 
 
Both Commissioners agreed that the Reconnecting Communities grant – if successful – could be a 
suitable venue for future discussions of a truck bypass, since the grant would involve a holistic, 
community wide approach towards addressing circulation needs and concerns.  
 
Commissioners expressed similar concerns about truck traffic and volume through all the 
communities, including Lone Pine, Big Pine and Independence. 

 
Commissioners Ray and Marcellin expressed frustration with the fact that Inyo County has a lot of 
needs, but the perception is that projects have stalled.   

 
5. Request Commission provide input into potential grant opportunities – RAISE, Rural & Tribal 

Assistance Pilot Program & Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 
 

Justine provided an overview of the types of grant projects that could be addressed by the 
abovementioned grants.  Climate resiliency projects to identify persistent flood or disaster-prone 
areas, evacuation and alternative routes for egress and ingress; and community specific mobility plans 
to bolster community input and support for the two existing Active Transportation grant projects.   
Two consultants, LSC and the Ferguson Group, are available to assist with one application.  
Commissioners weighed in on the ideas and provided thoughts about how to move forward.  
Commissioner Roeser brought up the CWPP as a good resource with a lot of detail about the climate 
resilience topic.  She also would like to see Visioning plans for all the communities along US 395.  
She also mentioned the southeast county draft community plans that still need funding for CEQA. 
Commissioners were open to all suggestions and staff will report back in November with final 
decisions and the grant selected as the best fit for the project. 



Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

 
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

6. City of Bishop Report 

Nora expressed her appreciation for the CTC town hall.  Their visit was valuable to help staff build 
relationships.  Their visit gave them some perspective on some of our unique rural challenges.   
She provided a summary of the recent City projects: 
• East Line Bridge, close to 30% design.  Still seeking funding for construction, she was able to 

potentially find a lead on some funding sources when the CTC was here. 
• South Warren, working to finalize the PS&E package and R/W 
• Primarily been working on water and sewer projects, including preparation of the PER to apply 
for a USDA RD loan for the water line replacement under Line Street to accomplish the work before 
Caltrans completes the Bishop Pavements job.  Also working on the PER for USDA disaster funds to 
make the City’s sewer collection system more resilient to major storm events and infiltration.  
Working on an additional PER for compliance with the lead and copper rule, which will mandate the 
City to provide an inventory and report out all the materials for all water service laterals, including 
the customer side, which the City does not own or control 

 

7. ESTA Executive Director’s Report  

Phil is actively working on a hydrogen plan for the region.  He visited the Port in Hayward California 
to gather information about the use of hydrogen as a fuel source.  He shared a clip of a video he made 
of cutting-edge technology developed by AC Transit.  AC Transit is building a hydrogen training 
school.  They have developed a tool that employs virtual reality to provide real-time technical 
assistance for hydrogen vehicle repair, from anywhere with a Wi-Fi connection.      

 

8. Caltrans Report 

Catherine Carr provided the Caltrans report.  She provided details about the Olancha-Cartago traffic 
switch, Olancha Cartago shoulder closures, Dunmovin’ thin blanket project.  She also provided 
updates on the upcoming Bishop Pavement, Meadow Farms ADA, and Fish Springs projects. 
Caltrans HQ has selected D9’s Climate Change Planning Unit to apply for a PROTECT planning 
grant for Hwy 190 to conduct hydraulic modeling, assess corridor vulnerabilities and 30% design + 
cost estimates.  D9 will be asking for letters of support. 

 
Mark Heckman addressed a question from Commissioner Muchovej about the Wye Road intersection 
Street Story survey.  He mentioned that it was confusing because there were no visuals of the 
proposed roundabout options, such as where it would be placed, exactly.  Mark replied that this is 
because it is early in the PID/planning stage, and nothing has been decided yet.  They are gathering 
information and feedback at this point and don’t want to cause controversy or concern.  
Commissioners Marcellin and Roeser have been receiving calls from concerned residents about the 
idea of a roundabout.  Mark stated that so far, comments have been generally on the positive side.  
There were additional questions and comments made by Commissioners about the Wye Road 
intersection, how trucks navigate roundabouts, and all-around support for the PROTECT grant 



Chair Celeste Berg, Vice-Chair Jeffery Ray, Commissioners: Jennifer Roeser, Stephen Muchovej, Jose Garcia, Scott Marcellin 

project for Hwy 190.  Can Hwy 136 be included for the benefit of Keeler and Darwin communities?  
Caltrans will take that back for consideration. 

 

9. Tribal Report  

10.  DVNP Report 

11.  USFS Report 

12.  Executive Director’s Report - Justine reported in Mike’s absence 
• Whitney Portal – Two box culverts’ design was approved, now awaiting construction and 

delivery.  Once installed, paving can begin.  Contractors are considering paving portions of 
the road in the meantime.  Timeline for completion is by the end of the year. 

• Q4 RPA invoice - $46K claimed; primarily focused on grants development in Q4. 

13.  Reports from all members of the Inyo County LTC 

Commissioner Roeser would like LTC staff to provide a workshop for the Board of Supervisors 
to talk about the various types of funding and process for getting a project shovel ready. 

  CORRESPONDENCE 

  None 

  ADJOURNMENT 

Adjourned at 10:39 until 8:00 a.m. to a date TBD at the Bishop City Chambers  
 
UPCOMING AGENDA ITEMS 
 
LTC Funding Workshop 
 
 



Action Item No. 2 
 
 
 

Master Fund Agreement  
Resolution No. 2024-08 



Agenda Item No. 2 Page 1 
 

INYO COUNTY    
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

P.O. DRAWER Q 
    INDEPENDENCE, CA 93526 

                                 PHONE:  (760) 878-0201  
                                 FAX:    (760) 878-2001  

Michael Errante 
Executive Director 
 
  
                   S T A F F   R E P O R T 
 
 
  MEETING:  December 4, 2024 
   
  PREPARED BY:  Justine Kokx, Transportation Planner 
 

SUBJECT:  Request Commission Approve Resolution No. 2024 – 08 
Authorizing the Executive Director to Execute the Master Fund 
Transfer Agreement No. 74A1634 

  ________________________________________________________________________ 
 

  
Recommended Action 
Approve Resolution No. 2024-08 authorizing the Executive Director to sign the Master Fund 
Transfer Agreement (MFTA) No. 74A1634 with the State of California Department of 
Transportation, Division of Transportation Planning (State). 
 

Summary  
The Inyo County Local Transportation Commission (ICLTC) operates under an existing MFTA 
(Agreement) that will expire on December 31, 2024.  The new Agreement is effective for ten 
years, beginning January 1, 2025, and sets forth conditions and requirements, applicable statutes 
and regulations for state and federal funds administered by the State’s Office of Regional and 
Community Planning.   Resolution No. 2024-08 authorizes the Executive Director to execute the 
MFTA and obligates the ICLTC to comply with the conditions and requirements of the 
Agreement.  A Master Fund Transfer Agreement must be in place with the State for the ICLTC 
to invoice for several fund sources.  Fund sources administered by the Office of Regional and 
Community Planning include Rural Planning Assistance (RPA), State Highway Account (SHA), 
Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation (RMRA), Federal Highway Administration, and Federal 
Transit Administration (FTA).  Inyo County Counsel has reviewed the MFTA and Resolution 
2024-08 and has no concerns. 
 
 
 

 

 



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-08 

INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE INYO COUNTY LOCAL 
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF THE MASTER FUND 

TRANSFER AGREEMENT (MFTA) FOR THE PERIOD OF 

 JANUARY 1, 2025, TO DECEMBER 31, 2034, 

WHEREAS, INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION has been designated 
by the State of California as the RTPA for Inyo County; and  

WHEREAS, INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION receives federal and 
state funding administered by the California Department of Transportation, Office of 
Regional and Community Planning; and  

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation, Office of Regional and 
Community Planning, which administers the funds detailed in the MFTA, requires the 
execution of a Master Fund Transfer Agreement authorized by a resolution from the 
governing board of a local or regional agency; and  

WHEREAS, INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION is an eligible recipient 
of federal, state, and local funding; and  

WHEREAS, the Executive Director is authorized to enter into contracts for grants 
awarded from federal, state, and local funding; and  

WHEREAS, INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION intends to delegate 
the authority to execute any agreements and amendments to the Executive Director;  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
COMMISSION HEREBY: 

1. Authorizes the Executive Director or their designee to execute the Master Fund 
Transfer Agreement (MFTA) with the California Department of Transportation;  

2. Agrees to comply with all conditions and requirements outlined in the MFTA, as 
well as applicable statutes, regulations, and guidelines for all state and federal 
funds administered by the California Department of Transportation, Office of 
Regional and Community Planning;  

3. Authorizes the Executive Director or their designee to undertake any further 
actions necessary to implement the MFTA, including executing amendments and 
other documents requiring the signature of an official representative of INYO 
COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this FOURTH day of DECEMBER 2024.  

 

Celeste Berg, Chairperson                                      Michael Errante, Executive Director 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 1 of 18  
 

STATE OF CALIFORNIA  

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

DIVISION OF TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

MASTER FUND TRANSFER AGREEMENT 
 

Recipient:  Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
a Regional Transportation Planning Agency (RTPA)    

 
Effective Date of this Agreement:  January 1, 2025  

 
Termination Date of this Agreement:  December 31, 2034  

 
 

FUND SOURCES COVERED BY THIS AGREEMENT MAY INCLUDE ALL OR SOME OF THE 
FOLLOWING FUND SOURCES AS IDENTIFIED IN EACH ANNUAL OVERALL WORK PROGRAM 
AGREEMENT 

◆ State Rural Planning Assistance (RPA) 
◆ State Highway Account (SHA) 
◆ Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
◆ Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) State Planning and Research (SPR) -

Partnership Planning  
◆ Federal Transit Administration (FTA)- State Planning and Research - Section 5304 
◆ Any other Federal or State funds administered by and through the California 

Department of Transportation, Office of Regional and Community Planning 

 
 

This Master Fund Transfer Agreement (MFTA), effective as of the date set forth above, is by 
and between the signatory public entity identified above, hereinafter referred to as RTPA, 
established under Government Code Section 29532.1 or 29535 and Title 2 Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200 (2 CFR Part 200) and the State of California, acting by and through its 
Department of Transportation, hereinafter referred to as STATE. This MFTA supersedes all 
previous Master Fund Transfer Agreements issued to RTPA by STATE for all these types of 
funds. 

 
RECITALS 

 
A. These funds may include, without limitation, State RPA, the discretionary grant 

components of the Federal Consolidated Planning Grant, and any other Federal or 
State funds administered by and through the Department of Transportation, Office of 
Regional and Community Planning. 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 2 of 18  
 

Consolidated Planning Grants consist of four federal funding types and sources: (i) FHWA 
Metropolitan Planning (PL); (ii) FTA Metropolitan Planning (Section 5303), both of which 
are annually allocated to MPOs; (iii) FHWA State Planning and Research-Partnership 
Planning (SPR); and (iv) FTA State Planning and Research (Section 5304), the last two of 
which are discretionary grants awarded through a grant application solicitation process. 
 
The State funds administered by the Office of Regional and Community Planning include 
but are not limited to: (i) State RPA, (ii) State Highway Account (SHA); and (iii) Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funds.

 
B. Upon appropriation of funds and pursuant to Public Utilities Code (PUC) sections 99311 

and 99311.1, STATE is required to pass-through Federal and State funds made available 
for transportation planning purposes to entities qualified to act as recipients of these 
funds in accordance with the intent of law and policy. 

 
C. STATE is also required to encumber Federal and State funds made available for planning 

purposes to entities qualified to act as recipients of these Federal and State funds in 
accordance with the intent of law and policy. 

 
D. STATE agrees to notify RTPA annually in writing of the anticipated level of State and 

Federal Planning funds that may be available to RTPA for each subsequent year's 
approved Overall Work Program, hereinafter referred to as OWP. 

 
E. STATE has prepared this MFTA, which hereby, together with the annual OWP and annual 

Overall Work Program Agreement, hereinafter referred to as the annual OWPA, found in 
APPENDIX A, set forth the entire terms and conditions under which these funds are to be 
expended by RTPA for the fiscal year period of that annual OWP and annual OWPA. 

 
F. The provisions set forth in this MFTA shall only apply to funds administered in whole or in 

part through this agreement. No provisions of the MFTA shall extend to or govern the use 
of funds that are not allocated or transferred under this agreement.  

 
ARTICLE 1-PROGRAM ADMINISTRATION 

 
Section 1. Overall Work Program and Overall Work Program Agreement 

 
A. RTPA agrees to develop and submit an annual draft OWP, in compliance with 23 CFR 

420, 23 CFR 450, and FTA Circular 8100.1D, for approval by STATE. This submittal, due no 
later than each March 1, shall describe RTPA's next fiscal year transportation planning 
program (fiscal year refers to the State fiscal year of July 1 to June 30). 

 
B. Each annual OWP and OWPA will expressly adopt and incorporate the terms and 

conditions of this MFTA by reference. 
 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 3 of 18  

C. RTPA shall be responsible for the complete performance of the work contained in each 
OWP.  All work shall be accomplished in accordance with applicable provisions of State 
and Federal law. 

 
D. RTPA will annually include a signed “Transportation Planning Process Self-Certification" 

form, and a signed “California Department of Transportation Debarment and 
Suspension” in each annual OWP as provided in APPENDIX E. If RTPA is awarded FHWA 
or FTA planning funds, RTPA will also provide a signed FTA "Certifications and Assurances 
for FTA Assistance" form (refer to Article IV, Section 1), and a signed “Disclosure of 
Lobbying Activities” form, provided in APPENDIX E. 

 
E. The annual OWPA is the approved OWP encumbrance document. Disbursement of 

funds by STATE will occur only after the execution of this MFTA; approval of the annual 
OWP by STATE; and execution of the annual OWPA. Funds will not be encumbered or 
reimbursed by STATE to RTPA until the annual OWPA has been executed and the State 
Budget for that fiscal year has been passed. 

 
F. No funds of any nature are allocated or encumbered in this MFTA unless included in an 

adopted and approved OWP by means of an approved and fully executed annual 
OWPA or OWPA amendment. Costs incurred prior to OWP approval or conditional 
approval are incurred at RTPA’s risk and will not be reimbursed until State approval. 

 
G. RTPA shall request and obtain from the STATE the final annual allocation amount for RPA 

funds. RTPA is encouraged to program the full annual allocation amount by means of 
an approved and fully executed OWP/A amendment, no later than May 1 of each fiscal 
year. Funds not programmed by RTPA for that fiscal year may lose Obligation Authority 
(OA) and be subject to State recission. RTPA will not be able to use the unprogrammed 
OA prior to submitting a justification to STATE and obtaining approval from STATE. 

 
H. RTPA agrees to satisfactorily complete all work element tasks, projects, and products as 

described in each approved annual OWP financed with State or Federal funds and 
encumbered by STATE via the annual OWPA. 

 
I. RTPA will identify in sufficient detail to indicate who (e.g., State, RTPA, public transit 

operator, local government, or consultant) who will complete the activities and 
products in the OWP work elements, including all work that is to be completed through 
a third-party contract and funded, in whole or in part, under the terms and conditions 
of this Agreement. 

 
J. STATE agrees to pass-through available funds and to reimburse allowable costs incurred 

in executing the tasks, projects, and products specified in the annually approved OWP 
funded from State and Federal sources and will be encumbered by STATE. 

 
K. Only work performed during the term of, and consistent with, the work elements in the 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 4 of 18  

OWP may be reimbursed. Reimbursements are based upon the fiscal year, July 1 to June 
30. All work performed after the end of each fiscal year (June 30) is subject to the 
approved OWP and annual OWPA for that corresponding fiscal year and reimbursed 
from the corresponding fiscal year budgeted funds. 

 
L. RTPA may incur costs against its approved annual OWP and may submit Requests for 

Reimbursement with the understanding that STATE is unable to approve any payments 
for reimbursement until such time as funds are included in that fiscal year's annual State 
Budget which is passed by the Legislature and signed by the Governor. 

 
M. RTPA shall use non-federal funds to finance the local share of eligible costs to ensure 

compliance with all applicable matching requirements for federal funds described in 
this MFTA and encumbered against the annual OWPA. Credit for local match will be 
allowed only for work performed during the approved term of each annual OWPA. Third-
party "in-kind" contributions are allowed as local match, in accordance with the 
provisions of 23 CFR 420.119 and 2 CFR 200.306.  

 
N. RTPA further agrees to ensure that amendments to a previously approved OWP and 

annual OWPA are adopted by the RTPA Board of Directors and subsequently approved 
by STATE, prior to initiating any work identified in those amendments; however RTPA is 
not required to pause work that was previously authorized.  Changes requiring 
amendments generally include adding, deleting, or revising a work element; adding 
funds to or deleting funds from a work element; incorporating carryover funds; or altering 
the scope of work. Administrative amendments are not required to be adopted by the 
RTPA Board of Directors. If a work element or project cannot be completed as originally 
approved, RTPA will report this in its Quarterly Progress and Expenditure Report and must 
amend the OWP/annual OWPA accordingly. Amendments to the OWP and annual 
OWPA must be submitted to STATE and be fully executed no later than May 1 each year. 
Through administrative amendment, RTPA will notify STATE via mail or electronic mail of 
administrative OWP changes that do not affect overall funding, scope of work, or 
project schedule. 

 
O. RTPA acknowledges and agrees that RTPA is the sole controller and manager of the 

work proposed in the OWP and is solely responsible for complying with the funding and 
use restrictions established by State and Federal law and this MFTA. 

 
P. RTPA shall be free to copyright the material developed under work items identified in 

the OWP provided that STATE and FHWA/FTA, as applicable, reserve a royalty-free, 
nonexclusive and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish or otherwise use, and 
authorize others to use, that work for government purposes. 

 
Section 2. Quarterly Progress and Expenditure Reports 

 
A. RTPA agrees to submit to STATE, no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the close of 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 5 of 18  

each of the first three quarters, Quarterly Progress and Expenditure Reports that include 
all work elements for transportation planning tasks, projects, and products funded wholly 
or in part by any of the fund sources listed in the "Recitals" section of this MFTA. RTPA 
agrees to submit to STATE the Quarterly Progress and Expenditure Report for each fourth 
quarter no later than sixty (60) calendar days after the close of the quarter. STATE may 
withhold payment of the final Request for Reimbursement submitted pending the 
submission of the fourth quarter Quarterly Progress and Expenditure Report. 

 
In accordance with the latest adopted Regional Planning Handbook, Quarterly Progress 
and Expenditure Reports submitted to STATE will identify all projects by work element 
number and title and shall contain, at a minimum the following: 

 A brief narrative describing work progress, progress in adhering to schedules, and 
schedule changes; 

 A list of tasks and products completed during the quarter; 
 Percent comparison of actual performance with work element-level goals and 

deliverables; 
 Status of expenditures by work element, funding source, and type, in a format 

compatible with the work program, including a comparison of budgeted 
(approved) amounts and actual costs incurred; 

 Other pertinent supporting information, such as major products, challenges, etc. 
 

B. STATE reserves the right to deem incomplete any Quarterly Progress and Expenditure 
Report that does not sufficiently document the above-required information and may 
withhold payment of Requests for Reimbursement submitted pending the submission of 
required documentation. 

 
ARTICLE II - ALLOWABLE COSTS AND REIMBURSEMENT 

 
Section 1. Requests for Reimbursement 

 
A. Requests for Reimbursement must conform to either subpart 1 or subpart 2 hereinbelow 

for the entire State fiscal year: 
 

1. RTPA shall prepare and electronically submit to STATE, not more frequently than 
once a month, but at least quarterly, one signed Request for Reimbursement of 
actual allowable costs incurred and paid (expended) by RTPA consistent with 
work elements described in the OWP (conforming to the format provided in 
APPENDIX B) and including the information required in part B of this section. The 
amount billed per each work element is not to exceed the total amount 
authorized for that work element in the OWP. Each expenditure by work element 
must meet the minimum required or contracted local match, if applicable, on 
every Request for Reimbursement. Reimbursements under this MFTA will be 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 6 of 18  

allowed if based upon actual costs expended and supported by RTPA's 
accounting system. RTPA must not only have incurred the allowable project cost 
on or after the effective date of the annual OWPA and on or before its termination 
date but must also have paid those expenses. 

2. RTPA shall prepare and electronically submit to STATE, not more frequently than 
once a month, but at least quarterly, one signed Request for Reimbursement of 
actual allowable costs incurred by RTPA. This submission must be consistent with 
work elements described in the OWP (conforming to the format provided in 
APPENDIX B) and include the information required in part B of this section. The 
amount billed per each work element is not to exceed the total amount 
authorized for that work element in the OWP. Each expenditure by work element 
must meet the minimum required or contracted local match, if applicable, on 
every Request for Reimbursement. Reimbursements under this MFTA will be 
allowed if based upon actual costs incurred and supported by the RTPA 
accounting system.  The RTPA accounting system must adhere to Generally 
Accepted Accounting Principles. This adherence enables the determination of 
allowable incurred costs by accruing due to the costs billed to the RTPA and 
recognized by the RTPA as valid, undisputed, due, and payable. 

3. By submitting accrued but unpaid costs for reimbursement, RTPA agrees that within 
ten (10) working days of receipt of STATE's reimbursement, the full amount of all 
cost items submitted as reimbursable accrued costs shall be paid to each billing 
entity. Any reimbursed accrued cost not paid within this ten (10) working day 
grace period shall accrue interest payable to STATE at the then present interest 
rate established by the State Treasurer's Pooled Money Investment Account. 
Interest incurred must be timely remitted to STATE. Reimbursed incurred costs not 
paid to the billing entities by RTPA within forty-five (45) days of RTPA's receipt of 
STATE's reimbursement will thereafter be deemed unallowable. All unallowable 
costs must be immediately remitted to STATE. RTPA agrees to submit a revised 
Disadvantage Business Enterprises Utilization Report (ADM 3069) as soon as 
reimbursement occurs. 

 
If RTPA is found, through audit or other means, not to have paid a billing entity its 
invoiced sums then owed within the ten (10) working day grace period, RTPA must 
immediately revert to the reimbursement process described in subpart 1 above. 

 
B. In order to receive reimbursements, RTPA agrees to furnish with each billing, at a 

minimum, the information provided for in APPENDIX B3, a detailed financial 
management system report from the RTPA accounting system which denotes those 
reimbursable costs, as well as those used for local match, were either expended or 
incurred, as applicable. 

C. STATE agrees to make reimbursements to RTPA, in conformance with State and Federal 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 7 of 18  

regulations, as promptly as STATE fiscal procedures will permit upon the receipt of a 
signed and electronically submitted Request for Reimbursement (conforming to the 
format provided in APPENDIX B) that includes all required information, as applicable, 
(conforming to the format in section B) of actual allowable costs incurred for the period 
of time covered by that Request for Reimbursement. Incomplete or inaccurate requests 
for reimbursement shall be returned to RTPA unapproved for correction as soon as errors 
are discovered. 

 
D. No State and/or Federal funds administered under this MFTA will be dispersed on the 

advance basis defined in 2 CFR 200.305. 

Section 2. Travel and Per Diem Reimbursement 
 

A. Payments to RTPA for travel and subsistence (per diem) expenses of RTPA staff and its 
contractors and subcontractors claimed for reimbursement using funds administered 
through this Agreement or as local match credit shall not exceed rates authorized to be 
paid non-state employees under current State Department of Human Resources 
(CalHR) rules unless written verification is supplied that government hotel rates are not 
commercially available to RTPA, or its contractors, its subcontractors, and/or its 
subrecipients, at the time and location required as specified in the California 
Department of Transportation's Travel Guide Exception Process. The requirements of this 
section shall only apply to direct project costs and do not extend to indirect costs 
allocated through a federally approved Indirect Cost Rate Proposal. 

 
Section 3. Final Request for Reimbursement and OWP Closeout Documentation 

 
A. RTPA shall electronically submit an OWP/annual OWPA closeout documentation 

package and OWP final products to STATE no later than August 31st of each fiscal year. 
The closeout package shall conform to the format provided in APPENDIX C. 

 
B. The closeout package must be attached to a transmittal letter, typed on RTPA 

letterhead. Failure to submit these documents by August 31st of each fiscal year may 
result in STATE withholding future apportionments and/or allocations to RTPA. STATE 
election not to withhold future apportionments and/or allocations immediately after the 
end of one fiscal year shall not limit STATE ability to initiate subsequent withholdings. 

 
C. Upon receipt of the required closeout documentation and OWP final products, STATE 

will issue a reconciliation letter to RTPA stating the amount of funds available to be 
carried over to the subsequent year’s OWP. RTPA may carry over an amount no greater 
than 25% of the prior year’s RPA allocation. RTPA may amend some or all of these funds 
into the OWPA only upon signature of the reconciliation letter by the RTPA executive 
director or his or her appointee, and submittal of the signed letter to STATE. Any funds 
that are identified in the reconciliation letter, but not programmed by May 1 each year 
in which the letter is issued, will be forfeited.  



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 8 of 18  

 
Section 4. Funding Contingencies 

 
A. All obligations of STATE under the terms of the MFTA and each annual OWPA are subject 

to the availability of Federal and State funds, appropriation of resources by the 
Legislature, and the annual passage of the State Budget. The authorization and 
obligation of these funds by outside entities may be terminated, limited or otherwise 
adversely affected by factors which may include, but are not limited to, changes in 
State or Federal law regarding the encumbrance and reimbursement of the funds 
provided by each annual OWPA and this MFTA. 

 
ARTICLE III - AUDITS AND REPORTS 

 
Section 1. Cost Principles 

 
A. RTPA agrees to comply with Title 2 CFR Part 200 Uniform Administrative Requirements, 

Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (2 CFR Part 200), as 
applicable. 

B. RTPA agrees, and will require that its contractors, subcontractors, and subrecipients be 
obligated to agree, that (a) the Contract Cost Principles and Procedures, 48 CFR, 
Federal Acquisition Regulations System, Chapter 1, Part 31, et seq., shall be used to 
determine the allowability of individual project cost items (subrecipients shall refer to, 2 
CFR Part 200); and (b) all parties shall comply with Federal administrative procedures in 
accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. Every sub-recipient receiving project funds as a 
contractor, subcontractor, or sub-grantee under this MFTA shall comply with Federal 
administrative procedures in accordance with 2 CFR Part 200. 

 
C. RTPA agrees and shall require that all of its agreements with contractors, subcontractors, 

and subrecipients funded in whole or in part with funds administered through this MFTA 
contain provisions requiring adherence to this section in its entirety, as applicable. 

 
Section 2. Indirect Cost Agreement and Cost Allocation Plan (ICAP) 

 
A. Prior to RTPA seeking reimbursement of indirect costs, RTPA must prepare and submit 

annually to STATE for review and acceptance an indirect cost rate proposal and a 
central service cost allocation plan (if any) in accordance with 2 CFR, Part 200 Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal 
Awards or applicable cost principles and Local Program Procedures Manual (Chapter 
5). 

 
B. Prior to RTPA seeking reimbursement of subrecipient indirect costs, and when 

subrecipient cognizant federal agency, as defined in 2 CFR part 200, is USDOT and/or 
STATE, RTPA agrees and will require subrecipient to comply with section 2A. 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 9 of 18  

C. Prior to RTPA seeking reimbursement of subrecipient indirect costs, and when 
subrecipient ICAP is approved by a cognizant federal agency other than USDOT, RTPA 
agrees and will require subrecipient to submit to STATE a copy of the cognizant agency 
approval, the approved proposal, plan, subsidiary worksheets, and other relevant data 
on an annual basis as evidence of the approval. 

 
D. If a submitted ICAP does not meet the requirements of 2 CFR Part 200, and is determined 

to be insufficient, STATE will advise RTPA of additional documentation or changes 
needed to meet Federal and State requirements. RTPA agrees to provide requested 
documentation or required changes, and if RTPA is non-compliant the submissions may 
be returned to RTPA if requested documentation is not provided or required changes 
are not made. 

 
E. Material audit adjustments will require reimbursement to STATE or adjustment to 

subsequent years ICAPs if proposals are later found to have included costs that are 
unallowable as specified by law or regulation, or the terms and conditions of this MFTA. 

F. RTPA agrees and shall require that all its agreements with subrecipients funded in whole 
or in part with funds administered though this MFTA contain provisions requiring 
adherence to this section in its entirety, as applicable.  

 
Section 3. Record Retention/Audits 

 
A. RTPA, its contractors, subcontractors and sub-recipients, agree to comply with Title 2, 

Code of Federal Regulations (CFR), Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards. RTPA shall maintain, and shall 
require its subrecipients, contractors and its subcontractors to maintain all source 
documents, books, records and supporting documents connected with their 
performance of OWP work initiated under this MFTA and each applicable annual OWPA 
for a minimum of five (5) years from the date of final payment to RTPA or, if an audit is 
initiated within that timeframe, until audit resolution is achieved for each annual OWPA, 
whichever is later, and shall make all such supporting information available for 
inspection, copying,  and audit by representatives of STATE, the California State Auditor, 
or the Federal Government upon request. Copies will be made and furnished by RTPA 
upon request at no cost to STATE or its agents. Scanned original documents in electronic 
form are suitable to meet this requirement. 

 
B. RTPA shall establish and maintain, and shall require that its subrecipients, contractors and 

subcontractors shall establish and maintain, an accounting system conforming to 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) to support Requests for 
Reimbursement which segregate and accumulate the costs of work elements by line 
item (i.e. direct labor, other direct costs, subrecipients/subcontractor, etc.) and enable 
the determination of expenditures at interim points of completion, and provide support 
for reimbursement payment vouchers or invoices. 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 10 of 18  

C. For the purpose of determining compliance with Government Code 8546.7, in 
connection with the performance of RTPA contracts and/or agreements with third 
parties, RTPA, RTPA sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors which are funded in 
whole or in part with funds administered through this MFTA, shall each maintain and 
make available for inspection all books, documents, papers, accounting records, and 
other evidence pertaining to the performance of such contracts and/or agreements, 
including, but not limited to, the costs of administering those various contracts and/or 
agreements. All the above referenced parties shall make such contracts and/or 
agreements available at their respective offices at all reasonable times during the entire 
period of each annual OWPA and for five (5) years from the date of final payment to 
RTPA or, if an audit is initiated within that timeframe, until audit resolution is achieved for 
each annual OWPA, whichever is later. STATE, the California State Auditor, or any duly 
authorized representative of STATE or the United States Department of Transportation, 
shall each have access to any books, records, and documents that are pertinent to the 
fulfillment of the contracts/ and/or agreements for audits, examinations, excerpts, and 
transactions, and RTPA shall furnish copies thereof if requested. 

D. Where applicable, RTPA agrees to comply with audit requirements for third party 
contractors, subcontractor and subrecipients in accordance with STATE Local 
Assistance Procedure Manual, Chapter 10 or any successor thereto. 

E. RTPA agrees to include all costs associated with this MFTA, OWP and annual OWPA, and 
any amendments thereto; to be examined in the annual audit and in the schedule of 
activities to be examined under RTPA single audit prepared in compliance with 2 CFR 
Part 200, subpart F. RTPA is responsible for assuring that the Single Auditor has reviewed 
the requirements of this MFTA, the OWP and the annual OWPA. Copies of said audits 
shall be submitted to STATE. 

F. When conducting an audit of the costs and match credits claimed under the provisions 
of each annual OWPA and this MFTA, STATE will rely to the maximum extent possible on 
any prior audit of RTPA pursuant to the provisions of State and Federal law. In the 
absence of such an audit, work of other auditors will be relied upon to the extent that 
work is acceptable to STATE when planning and conducting additional audits. 

 
G. RTPA agrees to furnish documentation to STATE supporting this requirement that all its 

agreements with contractors, subcontractors, and subrecipients funded in whole or in 
part with funds administered through this MFTA do contain provisions requiring 
adherence to this section in its entirety, as applicable. 

 
H. Neither the pendency of a dispute nor its consideration by STATE will excuse RTPA from 

full and timely performance in accordance with the terms of this MFTA, the OWP, and 
the annual OWPA. 

 
ARTICLE IV - MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 11 of 18  

 
Section 1. Federal Certifications and Assurances 

 
A. If RTPA receives RPA funds or RPA and CPG funds, RTPA shall comply with the 

"Transportation Planning Process Self-Certification" requirements in accordance with 23 
CFR 450.334 and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) Public Law 117-58) and 
the successors thereto. This certification is provided annually by FHWA and FTA. It may 
include, but is not limited to: 

 
I. 23 U.S.C. 134, 49 U.S.C. 5303, and subpart C of 23 part 450; 

 
II. In nonattainment and maintenance areas, sections 174 and 176 (c) and 

(d) of the Clean Air Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 7504, 7506 (c) and (d)) and 
40 CFR part 93; 

 
III. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d-1 and 

49 CFR Part 21; 
 

IV. 49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, 
national origin, sex, or age in employment or business opportunity; 

 
V. Section 1101 (b) of the FAST Act (Pub. L. 114-94) and 49 CFR part 26 

regarding the involvement of disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT 
funded projects; 

 
VI. 23 CFR Part 230, regarding the implementation of an equal employment 

opportunity program on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction 
contracts; 

 
VII. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 

et seq.) and 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38; 
 

VIII. The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101, prohibiting 
discrimination on the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal 
financial assistance; 

 
IX. Section 324 of title 23 U.S.C. regarding the. prohibition of discrimination 

based on gender; and 
 

X. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR part 

27 regarding discrimination against individuals with disabilities. 
 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 12 of 18  

B. If awarded FTA planning funds, RTPA shall comply with the annual FTA "Certifications and 
Assurances for FTA Assistance," including "Certifications and Assurances Required of 
Each Applicant" and the "Lobbying Certification" in compliance with 49 U.S.C. Chapter 
53; published annually in the Federal Register, and found online at 
https://www.transit.dot.gov  

 
The Federal Certification may include, but is not limited to the following areas under 
"Assurances Required of Each Applicant:'' 

 
1. Standard Assurances 

 
2. Standard Assurances: Additional Assurance for Construction Projects 

 
3. Procurement 

 
4. Suspension and Debarment 

 
5. Coronavirus Response and Relief Supplemental Appropriations Act, 2021, and 

CARES Act Funding 
 

6. American Rescue Plan Act Funding 
 

C. RTPA shall comply with the “California Department of Transportation Debarment and 
Suspension Certification” as required by U.S. DOT regulations on governmentwide 
Debarment and Suspension (non-procurement), 49 CFR 29.100. 

 
D. Copies of these annual Certifications and Assurances shall be included by RTPA in each 

final OWP. 
 

E. RTPA shall comply, and shall require its contractors, subcontractors, and subrecipients 
receiving funds or entering into agreements funded in whole or in part with funds 
administered through this MFTA to comply, with these Certifications. 

 
F. RTPA agrees to furnish documentation to STATE to support this requirement that all its 

agreements with contractors, subrecipients and subcontractors funded in whole or in 
part with funds administered through this MFTA, do contain provisions requiring 
adherence to this section in its entirety, as applicable. 

 
Section 2. Disadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) Requirements 

 
A. As mandated by 49 CFR Part 26, RTPA shall require that its contractors, subcontractors, 

and subrecipients do not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex 
in the award, administration, and performance of any FHWA/FTA fund-assisted contract 
or in the administration of RTPA DBE program.  



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 13 of 18  

B. RTPA DBE program, as required by 49 CFR Part 26 and as approved by STATE, is 
incorporated by reference into this MFTA. Implementation of this program is a legal 
obligation and any failure by RTPA to adhere to its terms shall be treated as a violation 
of this MFTA. Upon notification to the recipient of its failure to carry out its approved 
program, the US DOT may impose sanctions as provided for under Part 26 and may, in 
appropriate cases, refer the matter for enforcement under 18 U.S.C. 1001 and/or the 
Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, 31 U.S.C. 3801 et seq. and 49 CFR Part 
26.13(a). 

 
C. As required by 49 CFR part 26, the contract language in APPENDIX D relating to DBE 

requirements must be incorporated into all contracts funded in whole or in part with 
federal funds authorized in this Agreement. 

 
Section 3. Non-Discrimination Clause 

 
A. In the performance of work undertaken pursuant to this MFTA, the RTPA and its 

subcontractors shall not deny the contract’s benefits to any person on the basis of race, 
religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
medical condition, genetic information, marital status, sex, gender, gender identity, 
gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or military and veteran status, nor shall the 
discriminate unlawfully against any employee or applicant for employment because of 
race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, 
reproductive health decision making, medical condition, genetic information, marital 
status, sex, gender, gender identity, gender expression, age, sexual orientation, or 
military and veteran status. . RTPA shall insure that the evaluation and treatment of 
employees and applicants for employment are free of such discrimination. 

 
B. RTPA shall comply with the provisions of the Fair Employment and Housing Act 

(Government Code, Section 12900 et seq.), the regulations promulgated thereunder 
(California Code of Regulations, Title 2, Section 11000 et seq.), the provisions of Article 
9.5 Chapter 1, Part 1, Division 3, Title 2 of the Government Code (Government Code, 
Section 11135-11139.8), and the regulations or standards adopted by the awarding state 
agency to implement such article. The applicable regulations of the Fair Employment 
and Housing Commission implementing Government Code, Section 12990 (a-f), set forth 
in Chapter 5 of Division 4 of Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, are incorporated 
into this MFTA by reference and made a part hereof as if set forth in full. 

 
C. RTPA shall permit access by representatives of the Civil Rights Department and STATE 

upon reasonable notice at any time during the normal business hours, but in no case 
less than 24 hours’ notice, to such of its books, records, accounts, and all other sources 
of information and its facilities as said Department or STATE shall require to ascertain 
compliance with this clause.  

 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 14 of 18  

D. RTPA and RTPA's contractors, subcontractors, and/or subrecipients shall give written 
notice of their obligations under this clause to labor organizations with which they have 
collective bargaining or other labor agreements.  

 
E. RTPA shall include the non-discrimination and compliance provisions hereof in all 

agreements with its sub-recipients, contractors, and subcontractors, and shall include a 
requirement in all agreements with all of same that each of them in turn include a 
nondiscrimination and compliance provisions of this clause in all contracts and 
subcontracts the enter into to perform work under this MFTA.  
 

F. RTPA shall comply with the nondiscrimination program requirements of Title VI of the Civil 
Rights Act of 1964. Accordingly, 49 CFR Part 21, and 23 CFR Part 200 are made applicable 
to this MFTA by this reference. Wherever the term "Contractor" appears therein, it shall 
mean RTPA. 

 
Section 4. Federal Lobbying Activities Certification 

 
A. RTPA certifies, to the best of its knowledge and belief, that no State or Federal funds have 

been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of RTPA, to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any State or Federal agency, a 
Member of the State Legislature or United States Congress, an officer or employee of the 
Legislature or Congress, or any employee of a Member of the Legislature or Congress in 
connection with the awarding of any State or Federal contract, the making of any State 
or Federal grant, the making of any State or Federal loan, the entering into of any 
cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modification of any State or Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 

 
B. If any funds other than State or Federal funds have been paid or will be paid to any 

person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any Federal 
agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of 
a Member of Congress in connection with a State or Federal contract, grant, loan, or 
cooperative agreement, RTPA shall complete and submit Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure 
of Lobbying Activities” in accordance with those form instructions. 

 
C. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed 

when this MFTA and each annual OWPA was entered into. Submission of this certification 
is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, Title 
31, U. S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a 
civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 

 
D. RTPA also agrees by signing this MFTA that RTPA shall require that the language of this 

certification be included in all contracts and subcontracts funded wholly or in part by 
any fund sources listed on Page 1 of this MFTA and which exceed $100,000 and that all 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 15 of 18  

such subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

ARTICLE V - GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

Section 1. Contract Award 
 

A. RTPA, contractor, subcontractor and subrecipient contracts containing Federal and 
State planning funds are required to be bid and awarded in accordance with 2 CFR 
Part 200, and consistent with Local Assistance Procedure Manual, Chapter 10, or 
successors thereto as applicable. The requirements of this section apply to direct project 
costs and shall not apply to contracts included in RTPA’s federally approved Indirect 
Cost Rate Proposals, if applicable. 

 
Section 2. Contract Amendment 

 
A.  No amendments to the terms of this MFTA, any OWP or any annual OWPA shall be valid 

unless made in writing and signed by the individuals legally authorized to contractually 
bind the parties hereto. Each party agrees that it has had or will have the opportunity to 
seek review by and approval from its legal counsel of the original documents and any 
proposed alteration or variation. No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated 
herein shall be binding on any of the parties thereto. For the purposes of this MFTA, the 
Chief of the Office of Regional and Community Planning, Division of Transportation 
Planning, shall be the Contract Administrator for STATE. 

 
Section 3. Adjudication of Disputes by Way of Administrative Proceedings 

 
A. STATE hereby sets up an Administrative Procedure for adjudication of disputes that may 

arise when administering the program as defined by the terms and conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
RTPA agrees to exhaust the administrative remedy prior to resorting to legal remedies. In 
case of disputes with STATE, RTPA shall submit to the Chief of the Division of Transportation 
Planning, CALTRANS (DC PLANNING) or designee a written demand for a decision 
regarding the disposition of any dispute, arising under this Agreement. The DC PLANNING 
shall make a written decision regarding the dispute and will provide it to the RTPA. The 
RTPA shall have an opportunity to challenge the DC PLANNING determination but must 
make that challenge in writing, within ten (10) working days to the STATE Contract Officer 
or his/her designee. If the challenge is not made by RTPA within the ten (10) day period, 
the DC PLANNING decision shall become the final decision of the STATE. If such a 
challenge is made, The DC PLANNING and RTPA shall submit written, factual information 
and data in support of their respective positions to STATE Contract Officer within a 
timeframe established by the RTPA at the time of challenge. The decision of the STATE 
Contract Officer or his/her designee shall be final, conclusive and binding regarding the 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 16 of 18  

dispute, unless RTPA commences an action in court of competent jurisdiction to contest 
the decision in accordance with Division 3.6 of the California Government Code. 

 
Section 4. Intercept Clause 

 
A.  Costs for which RTPA receives reimbursement payment or credit that are determined by 

a subsequent audit or other review by either STATE or Federal authorities to be 
unallowable under 2 CFR, part 200; or 48 CFR, Chapter 1, Part 31 are to be repaid to 
STATE by RTPA within thirty (30) days of RTPA receiving notice of audit findings. Should 
RTPA fail to reimburse moneys due STATE within thirty (30) days of discovery or demand, 
or within such other period as may be agreed in writing between the Parties hereto, 
STATE is authorized to intercept and withhold future payments due to RTPA from STATE or 
any third-party source, including, but not limited to, the State Treasurer, the State 
Controller or any other fund source. 

 
Section 5. Parties of Agreement 

 
A. This MFTA, OWP, annual OWPA, and any related agreements are solely between the 

named parties thereto and no express or implied benefit to entities or individuals not a 
party thereto is intended or to be inferred. There are no third-party beneficiaries to or of 
this MFTA or any OWP, or annual OWPA or any other agreement pertaining hereto. 

Section 6. Hold Harmless and Indemnification Clause 
 

A. Neither STATE nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage 
or liability occurring or arising by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by 
RTPA, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, sub-recipients, or subcontractors 
under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction conferred upon RTPA 
under this MFTA and/or each annual OWPA. It is understood and agreed that, pursuant 
to Government Code section 895.4, RTPA shall fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless 
STATE and its officers and employees from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind 
and description  brought forth under, including, but not limited to tortuous, contractual, 
inverse condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of 
anything done or omitted to be done by RTPA, its officers, employees, agents 
contractors, subrecipients or subcontractors under this MFTA and each annual OWPA. 

 
B. Neither RTPA nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury, damage 

or liability occurring or arising by reason of anything done or omitted to be done by 
STATE, its officers, employees, agents, contractors, sub-recipients, or subcontractors 
under or in connection with any work, authority, or jurisdiction conferred upon to STATE 
under this MFTA. It is understood and agreed that pursuant to Government Code section 
895.4, STATE shall fully defend, indemnify and hold harmless RTPA, its officers and 
employees from all claims, suits, or actions of every name, kind and description brought 
forth under, including, but not limited to tortuous, contractual, inverse condemnation or 



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Agreement Number 74A1634 

Page 17 of 18  

other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted 
to be done by STATE, its officers, employees, agents contractors, subrecipients or 
subcontractors under this MFTA. 

Section 7. Default 

A. In the event that RTPA (a) fails to comply with applicable Federal and State laws and
regulations; (b) fails to timely proceed with OWP in accordance with the MFTA or OWPA;
or (c) otherwise materially violates the terms and conditions of this MFTA and/or OWPA,
STATE reserves the right to terminate all funding for that OWP, or a portion thereof.  Any
such termination shall be accomplished by delivery to RTPA of a Notice of Termination,
which notice shall become effective not less than thirty (30) days after receipt specifying
the reason for the termination, the extent to which funding of work under this MFTA is
terminated and the date upon which such termination becomes effective. During the
period before the termination date becomes effective, RTPA and STATE shall meet to try
to resolve any dispute. No such termination shall become effective if: (a) during the
process described in Article V, Section 3, the termination is stayed, (b) within the thirty
(30) day period after receipt of the Notice of Termination, RTPA either cures the default,
or (c) if that default is not reasonably susceptible to cure within said thirty (30) day period,
STATE approves a RTPA plan and RTPA thereafter diligently completes the cure in a
manner and timeline acceptable to STATE.

B. If STATE terminates funding for OWP pursuant to the above paragraph A, STATE shall pay
RTPA the sum due RTPA under the annual OWPA for eligible work performed prior to
termination.

Section 8. Termination 

B. This MFTA shall remain in full force and effect until the termination date stated on Page
1 of this MFTA, unless superseded or terminated in conformance with Section 7 of this
Article. All indemnification, document retention, audit, claims, and legal challenge
articles will remain in effect until terminated or modified in writing by mutual agreement
or expiry by statute of limitations.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 

By: ____________________________ By: ____________________________ 
 Robert Carothers, Contract Officer  Michael Errante, Executive Director 

Date: ________________ Date: ________________ 



Inyo County Local 
Transportation Commission 

MFTA No. 
Page 18 of 18 

By: 
____________________________ 

Grace Weitz, Attorney 

Date: ________________ 

APPENDICES 

A Overall Work Program Agreement  
B RPA Request for Reimbursement 
B2 Request for Reimbursement Support Documentation 
C Certification of Expenditure 
D DBE Contract Language (required) 
D2 DBE Semi-Annual Report 
D3 DBE Awards and Commitments 
D4 DBE Utilization Report 
D5 DBE Good Faith Efforts Documentation 
E Certifications and Assurances 
F Board Resolution 



Page 1 of 1

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 1 of 2

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 2 of 2

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 1 of 1

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 1 of 3

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 2 of 3

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 3 of 3

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 1 of 1

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 2 of 2

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 1 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 2 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 3 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 4 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 5 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 6 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 7 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 8 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 9 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 10 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 11 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 12 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 13 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 14 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 15 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 16 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 17 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 18 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 19 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 20 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 21 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 22 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 23 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 24 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634



Page 25 of 25

Inyo County Local Transportation Commission 
Caltrans Agreement Number 74A1634


	#01 Agenda December 4th 2024 LTC
	INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	#01 blank page
	#01a Draft Minutes October 16 2024 LTC
	INYO COUNTY LOCAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

	#02 blank page
	#02a Staff Report for MFTA
	#02b Resolution No. 2024-08 2025_MFTA_Board_Resolution_Rev.2024-09-19
	#02c MFTA - RTPA Inyo 74A1634 Pkg
	LTC Map 11-25-24



